UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA

Leonard Pdtier, Civil No. 02-4328 (DWF/SRN)
Raintiff,

V. ORDER AND MEMORANDUM

Federd Bureau of Investigation,

Defendant.

Barry A. Bachrach, Esg., Bowditch & Dewey; and Michael Kuzma, Esg., Michad Kuzma, ESq.,
counsd for Paintiff.

Elizabeth J. Shapiro, Esg., and Preeya M. Noronha, Esg., U.S. Department of Justice, counsel for
Defendant.

The above-entitled matter is before the undersigned United States Digtrict Judge pursuant to
Paintiff Leonard Peltier’ s gpped of Magidtrate Judge Susan Richard Nelson’s Order dated January 11,
2005.

Magidtrate Judge Nelson issued an order on August 15, 2003, denying Plaintiff’s motion for a
Vaughn index and granting Defendant’ s motion for astay of proceedings. The August 15, 2003,
Order dso addressed the processing of Plaintiff’s FOIA requests. Magistrate Judge Nelson directed
that the processing of documents requested from the Minnegpolis FBI Fied Office would begin not
later than December 2004, and would be completed by December 2005, cons stent with Defendant’ s

representations to the Court. (See August 15, 2003, Order at 15.) Finally, Magistrate Judge Nelson



ordered the Defendant to submit progress reports to the Court every four months from the date of the
Order until the completion of its processing of Plaintiff’s documents. The background of this matter is
st forth in the Magistrate Judge' s August 15, 2003, Order and is incorporated herein for purposes of
this motion.

Pantiff now asserts that Defendant has not acted in good faith in producing documents. (See
Letter of January 6, 2005, from Barry A. Bachrach and Michad Kuzmato Magistrate Judge Nelson.)
Magigtrate Judge Nelson construed Plaintiff’ s January 6, 2005, correspondence as a letter requesting a
motion to reconsider the August 15, 2003, Order pursuant to L.R. 7.1(g). In an Order dated January
11, 2005, Magistrate Judge Nel son concluded that there were no compelling circumstances as required
by L.R. 7.1(g) and, accordingly, denied Plaintiff’s request for reconsderation. Plaintiff has gppeded
from the January 11, 2005, Order. Defendant opposes Plaintiff’s appedl.

The Court must modify or set asde any portion of the Magistrate Judge' s order found to be
clearly erroneous or contrary to law. See 28 U.S.C. 8§ 636(b)(1)(A); Fed. R. Civ. P. 72(a); Local
Rule 72.1(b)(2). Thisisan “extremey deferential sandard.” Reko v. Creative Promotions, Inc., 70
F. Supp. 2d 1005, 1007 (D. Minn. 1999). “A finding is‘ clearly erroneous when, dthough thereis
evidence to support it, the reviewing court on the entire evidence is left with the definite and firm
conviction that a mistake has been committed.” Chakalesv. Comm'r of Internal Revenue, 79 F.3d
726, 728 (8th Cir. 1996) (quoting United States v. United States Gypsum Co., 333 U.S. 364, 395
(1949)).

Basad upon the presentations of the parties, including the parties’ written submissons, the

Court having reviewed the contents of the procedurd history and the Court’ sfile in this metter, the



Court being otherwise duly advised in the premises, and for the reasons sated in the Memorandum
below, the Court hereby enters the following:
ORDER
1 Paintiff’s request for leave to file amotion to reconsider isSDENIED.
2. Consgtent with Magistrate Judge Susan Richard Nelson’s Order dated
August 15, 2003, Defendant is hereby ordered to complete the release of dl documents requested by

Paintiff from the Minnegpolis Fidd Office by December 1, 2005.

Dated: April 26, 2005 sDonovan W. Frank
DONOVAN W. FRANK
Judge of United States Digtrict Court

MEMORANDUM
In an order dated August 15, 2003, Magistrate Judge Nelson ordered that the FBI commence
releasing documents from the Minnegpolis Field Office in December 2004, and rel ease the documents
in 60-day intervas. (See August 15, 2003, Order at 15.) The FBI has produced itsfirst round of
documents, purportedly in compliance with this order. However, Plaintiff contends that the FBI has not
acted in good faith and due diligence in producing such documents. Specificdly, Plaintiff chalenges the
withholding of 144 pages of the first release of public trid transcripts. The FBI asserts that these

documents were withheld pursuant to Exemption (b)(5)* because they contained conversations outside

1 The Court assumes that the FBI isreferring to the provisons of 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(5),
which provides that an agency need not make public “inter-agency or intra-agency memorandums or
(continued...)



the hearing of the jury, and “the FBI had no practicable method for determining whether these pages
were ever released to the public.” (See Defendant’ s Response to Appellee’ s Brief by Federal Bureau
of Invedtigation a Ex. B.)

Although the FBI may technicdly be in compliance with the Magistrate Judge' s order, the
Court is unsatisfied with the FBI’ s explanation for withholding the 144 pages. As noted in this Court’s
previous Order, this Court was able to determine in less than one hour of inquiry that the parties had
received dally transcripts for every day of the Leonard Pdltier trid, and that such transcripts were
entirdy available to the public and unsedled. (See March 21, 2005, Order at 4.) A “practicable
method” to determine whether such documents were publicly accessible (also known as due diligence)
may have involved a quick phone cdl to the Clerk’ s Office, but clearly thiswas not done. Whether this
sequestration of pages was the result of the FBI’ slack of resources or ineptitude, it is inexcusable and
will not be tolerated again by this Court.

The Court dso questions Defendant’ s contention that Plaintiff has no rea method of recourse,
because Plantiff is“dready a the front of the ling” in the queue. (See Defendant’ s Response to
Appelleg s Brief by Federal Bureau of Investigation a Ex. B.) Defendant has not defined the “front of
theline” Itisnot clear to the Court whether such status even implies that more than one FBI gtaff
member is“processing” Plaintiff’s request, now that it has reached the front of the FBI’ s processing

queue. Magidtrate Judge Nelson relied on the good faith of the FBI when she ordered the FBI to

1(....continued)
letters which would not be available by law to a party other than an agency in litigation with the

agency.”



release documents according to the schedule set forth in her August 15, 2003, Order. The FBI is
mistaken if it believes that there is no further relief that the Court can grant to Plaintiff, as the Court is
fully prepared to order an expedited release schedule if it is demondtrated, again, that the FBI has not
acted in good faith.

Magidrate Judge Nelson’s order fully contemplates that the FBI complete the release of dll
documents from the Minnegpolis field office by December 2005, cons stent with representations made
by Defendant. (See August 15, 2003, Order at 15.) It iswith this structure in mind that the Court
specifies that such releases be completed in full by December 1, 2005.

Finaly, Plaintiff asserts that two categories of documents—Subfile N and the AnnaMae Aquash
file—are known to bein dispute, and that the FBI is aware that it does not intend to release these
documents. At ord argument, counsel for the FBI represented that the FBI has not yet decided
whether these documents will be made available. The FBI further implied that it need not release any
information as to whether these documents will be released until it has completed its release of
documents and, subsequently, its Vaughn index. The Court finds that due diligence would require the
FBI to notify Plaintiff as soon as a determination is made with regard to whether these dlegedly criticd
documentswill be released. As soon as the Court is made aware of the FBI’s decision asto these
documents, the Court will order a briefing schedule to expedite the matter.

D.W.F.



